
FEBRUARY 25, 2014  PAGE 1 

BOARD OF FIRE COMMISSIONERS  
TRUCKEE MEADOWS FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 

SIERRA FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 
 
TUESDAY 11:00 a.m. FEBRUARY 25, 2014 
 
PRESENT: 

David Humke, Chairman 
Bonnie Weber, Vice Chairperson 

Marsha Berkbigler, Commissioner 
Vaughn Hartung, Commissioner 

Kitty Jung, Commissioner 
 

Nancy Parent, County Clerk 
John Slaughter, County Manager 

Paul Lipparelli, Legal Counsel 
Charles Moore, Fire Chief 

 
 The Board convened at 11:03 a.m. in regular session in the Commission 
Chambers of the Washoe County Administration Complex, 1001 East Ninth Street, Reno, 
Nevada, and conducted the following business: 
 
14-21F AGENDA ITEM 2 
 
Agenda Subject: “Public Comment. Comment heard under this item will be limited 
to three minutes per person and may pertain to matters both on and off the 
Commission agenda. The District will also hear public comment during individual 
action items, with comment limited to three minutes per person. Comments are to 
be made to the District as a whole.” 
 
 Sarah Chvilicek congratulated the Board and Fire Chief Moore for 
amending the Cooperative Agreement for mutual aid between the City of Reno and the 
Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District (TMFPD). She believed the intent was to 
continually move toward automatic aid and applauded that effort. She implored the Board 
to continue to pursue automatic aid because it was in the best interest of the citizens.  
 
 Sam Dehne spoke on the wording for public comment as noted on the 
agenda. He said the agenda stated that a person had three minutes per item; however, 
within a consent agenda there were multiple items. He questioned if he could speak three 
minutes for every one of those consent items.  
 
 
 
 
 
 



PAGE 2  FEBRUARY 25, 2014 

14-22F AGENDA ITEM 3 
 
Agenda Subject: “Fire Chief Report – A) Report and discussion related to fire 
district operations; B) Monthly Statistics; C) Volunteer Fire Service Report for 
January 2014; and, D) Analysis of responses requested by Commissioner Hartung.”  
 
 Fire Chief Charles Moore reported that the Ash Can program had been 
very successful. He noted that 250 cans had been distributed and indicated that the 
District had taken delivery of the next 300 cans. He said the program would not have 
been possible without corporate sponsors, such as the Peppermill Casino and the Atlantis 
Casino. Chief Moore presented Certificates of Appreciation to Kimberly Tolkien, 
Atlantis Casino’s Assistant General Manager, and Bill Hughes, Peppermill Casino’s 
Director of Marketing Operations. He stated that the program also created a mindset 
within the public to be careful while disposing fireplace ashes.  
 
 Mr. Hughes thanked the Board and the District for allowing the 
Peppermill to participate in the Ash Can program.  
 
 Ms. Tolkien thanked the District for the opportunity. She said the Atlantis 
was proud to participate in the Ash Can program. 
 
 Due to inclement weather that was expected later in the week, Chief 
Moore indicated that an open burn period could be instated. If there was significant 
moisture from the upcoming weather, he said the open burn period could run between 
March 1st and March 9th, but was dependent of the rain and snow that could be received.    
 
 Chief Moore explained that the District had applied for a grant with the 
Nevada Department of Forestry (NDF) to study particular areas within the service 
district. Amy Ray, Fire Marshal, said the grant from NDF was in the amount of $26,000 
with a $13,000 match. She said the grant would allow for a wild fire fuel hazardous 
assessment to be conducted for five areas identified within the District. The assessment 
would include identification on the types of fuels in the area, methods for fuels reduction 
and mitigation based on those fuel types, identification for methods of continuous 
maintenance of the fuels, and how the community could be empowered to participate in 
those efforts. The five areas identified within the District were areas that had not received 
any modifications for five, 10, or more years. Fire Marshal Ray indicated that the five 
areas identified for the assessments were: the Lone Tree Southwest Reno area 
encompassing 4,000 acres; the Red Rock/Silver Lake area encompassing about 27,000 
acres; the Spanish Springs area encompassing about 25,000 acres; the Geiger Grade area 
encompassing about 16 acres; and, the Caughlin Ranch area encompassing about 3,000 
acres. She said the grant would also enable the District to foster partnerships within those 
communities and create Community Wildlife Protection Plans (CWPP) and Fire Adaptive 
communities. 
 
 Commissioner Jung requested the Board review a copy of the grant. She 
inquired if Golden Valley or Sun Valley would be involved in the assessments. Fire 



FEBRUARY 25, 2014  PAGE 3 

Marshal Ray replied that those areas were not identified as target areas in the grant 
application. Commissioner Jung inquired on the identification criteria. Fire Marshal Ray 
explained that the criteria was based on areas that had not had any mitigation in five, 10 
or more years. She said Golden Valley was currently receiving some mitigation from the 
Bureau of Land Management (BLM) and Sun Valley also had some BLM strategies 
around the exterior. She said the criteria was based on high-end extreme areas and the 
mitigation strategies that had occurred.  
 
 In regard to the Hydrant Repair program, Commissioner Hartung asked if 
the hydrants had all been repaired or maintained. Chief Moore explained after the District 
stood up July 1, 2012, a comprehensive testing program was conducted on all the 
hydrants. He said maintenance was completed on hydrants that could be fixed and then 
the hydrants that were in need of more repairs were identified. He said hydrants still 
needing repair would be excavated during warmer weather and felt those repairs should 
be completed by mid-year. Commissioner Hartung commended staff for managing the 
Hydrant Repair program. Chief Moore stated that Captain James Solaro did an 
outstanding job in coordinating this program.  
 
 In response to a request from Commissioner Hartung concerning rural and 
frontier response times, Chief Moore displayed a map that analyzed those responses. He 
said the north and south areas of the County, away from the core, qualified as rural and, 
in some cases, frontier areas. As adopted in the Standards of Cover, the response time for 
a rural area should be the first response unit capable of initiating effective incident 
mitigation arriving within 20 minutes, 85 percent of the time, from receipt of the call. He 
reviewed the total responses since July 2012 and, in rural designations, there had been 
3,460 calls and 838 calls in the frontier areas. A copy of the map was placed on file with 
the Clerk. 
 
 Commissioner Hartung inquired on the number of volunteer fire stations 
that still needed to be made operational. Chief Moore replied that the Wadsworth Station 
was not currently active, but noted that Palomino Valley was moving forward in 
becoming operational.  
 
 Chief Moore said rural responses since July 2012 was about 27 percent 
and frontier responses was about 6.5 percent, which included all call types. He indicated 
there was no response time standard in the Standard of Cover for frontier areas, which 
meant that the best effort was made.  
 
 There was no action taken or public comment on this item. 
 
14-23F AGENDA ITEM 4  
 
Agenda Subject: “Approve the purchase of one hundred ten (110) sets of structural 
fire personal protective clothing (PPE) for career employees from L.N. Curtis & 
Sons, 1800 Peralta Street, Oakland, California 94607 at an estimated amount of 
$244,750. (All Commission Districts.)”   



PAGE 4  FEBRUARY 25, 2014 

 
 Fire Chief Charles Moore remarked that NRS 332.115 did not require a 
public bid when related to safety equipment for public safety personnel unless directed by 
a board. Based on State law, he recommended this not be bid, and he noted that staff was 
confident the price from L.N. Curtis & Sons was below State bids.    
 
 There was no public comment on this item. 
 
 On motion by Commissioner Hartung, seconded by Commissioner 
Berkbigler, which motion duly carried, it was ordered that Agenda Item 4 be approved.  
 
14-24F AGENDA ITEM 5  
 
Agenda Subject: “Accept a donation of 41 pet oxygen mask kits from the Reno 
Hospital for Cats to be utilized in rescue operations at the District’s Career and 
Volunteer Stations at an estimated value of $2,665. (All Commission Districts).” 
 
 Fire Chief Charles Moore explained that the Reno Hospital for Cats held a 
fundraiser and raised $2,665 for pet oxygen masks. He noted there were many times 
firefighters also needed to rescue four-legged victims.  
 
 There was no public comment on this item. 
 
 On motion by Commissioner Hartung, seconded by Commissioner Jung, 
which motion duly carried, it was ordered that Agenda Item 5 be accepted.   
 
14-25F AGENDA ITEM 6  
 
Agenda Subject: “Discussion and possible approval of an Amended Cooperative 
Agreement between City of Reno, Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District and 
Sierra Fire Protection District for providing fire and rescue services in mutual aid 
situations. (All Commission Districts.)” 
 
 Fire Chief Charles Moore stated that he and Reno Fire Chief Michael 
Hernandez had discussed the current mutual aid agreement. He reported that two existing 
items in the agreement to delay the call for mutual aid would be removed. Those items 
were the need to have a command officer on scene before mutual aid could be called, and 
the provision requiring an incident that exceeded the use of all regular capacity of the 
department. 
 
 Chairman Humke asked if those changes would be reflected within mutual 
aid agreements with other entities. Chief Moore replied this would not change any other 
mutual aid agreement, but would make this agreement similar to those other agreements. 
 
 Commissioner Hartung said section 7(d) in the agreement noted the 
requesting agency was required to pay the invoice in a “timely” manner and questioned 



FEBRUARY 25, 2014  PAGE 5 

the term timely. Paul Lipparelli, Legal Counsel, explained that the agreement did not 
specify a period of days, but was an effort to impose a duty on the parties to pay, and bill, 
in a timely fashion. Commissioner Hartung felt that was ambiguous and thought it could 
ultimately be a problem for the County. Chief Moore felt it would not be a problem 
because the billing time after an operational incident exceeding 12 hours was similar, 
which were rare events usually limited to wildland fires.            
 
 There was no public comment on this item. 
 
 On motion by Commissioner Berkbigler, seconded by Commissioner 
Hartung, which motion duly carried, it was ordered that Agenda Item 6 be approved. The 
Amended Cooperative Agreement for same is attached hereto and made a part of the 
minutes thereof.    
 
14-26F AGENDA ITEM 7  
 
Agenda Subject: “Approve the retention of Kafoury, Armstrong & Company to 
perform Independent Audit Services for Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District 
for fiscal year 2013/14 in an amount not to exceed $25,340.” 
 
 Chairman Humke asked if it was the intent to operate the two agencies 
together. Fire Chief Charles Moore replied that the two Districts essentially ran as one 
District; however, were separate legal entities that required separate audits, separate 
budgets, and separate expenditures for capital. Chairman Humke asked if a statute change 
was required to combine the two districts. Chief Moore replied that legislative action was 
needed for that to occur. He said that concept was taken to the Legislature during the last 
session, but was unsuccessful in moving out of committee. Chairman Humke questioned 
why it was unsuccessful since it seemed to be an ordinary event. Chief Moore stated there 
was some opposition from the City of Reno Firefighters Union. Chairman Humke asked 
if the costs had been quantified for the County having to bear the costs to operate two fire 
agencies as opposed to operating one agency. Chief Moore said those costs had been 
quantified, but he was unable to state the amount. He said most of those were overhead 
costs for audits, insurance and separate capital.      
 
 There was no public comment on this item. 
 
 On motion by Commissioner Berkbigler, seconded by Commissioner 
Hartung, which motion duly carried, it was ordered that Agenda Item 7 be approved.   
 
 The following agenda item No. 8 will be heard by the Washoe County Board of 
Commissioners who will convene only as the Board of Fire Commissioners for the 
Sierra Fire Protection District. 
 
 
 
 



PAGE 6  FEBRUARY 25, 2014 

14-27F AGENDA ITEM 8  
 
Agenda Subject: “Approve the retention of Kafoury, Armstrong & Company to 
perform Independent Audit Services for Sierra Fire Protection District for fiscal 
year 2013/14 in an amount not to exceed $18,000.”    
 
 There was no public comment on this item. 
 
 On motion by Commissioner Berkbigler, seconded by Commissioner 
Hartung, which motion duly carried, it was ordered that Agenda Item 8 be approved.   
 
14-28F AGENDA ITEM 9  
 
Agenda Subject: “Possible Closed Session pursuant to NRS 288.220 for the purpose 
of discussing with management representatives labor matters.” 
 
 There was no closed session scheduled.  
 
14-29F AGENDA ITEM 10  
 
Agenda Subject: “Commissioners’/Chief’s Announcements, requests for 
information and identification of topics for future agendas. (No discussion among 
Commissioners or action will take place on this item.)” 
 
 Fire Chief Charles Moore announced that the District had been awarded a 
Staffing for Adequate Fire and Emergency Response (SAFER) grant in the amount of 
$267,000. He explained that the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) 
requested the Board accept the grant within 30 days. Since the next scheduled meeting 
for the District was March 25th, he would attempt to obtain a waiver from FEMA, if not, 
he would return to the Board on March 11th for action to accept the grant. He said the 
District was pleased to have received the grant and indicated it would fund the Volunteer 
Fire Service Coordinator position. He thanked Battalion Chief Alex Kukulus for 
authoring the grant.  
  
 Commissioner Berkbigler requested a report on how the Volunteer Fire 
Departments were being trained. 
 
 Commissioner Weber requested that Station 13 be reviewed on the 
feasibility of moving to the Lemmon Valley Volunteer Station. She also requested a 
report on the response for a recent fatal accident that happened on Stead Boulevard.  
 
14-30F AGENDA ITEM 11  
 
Agenda Subject: “Public Comment. Comment heard under this item will be limited 
to three minutes per person and may pertain to matters both on and off the 
Commission agenda. The District will also hear public comment during individual 



FEBRUARY 25, 2014  PAGE 7 

action items, with comment limited to three minutes per person. Comments are to 
be made to the District as a whole.” 
 
 There was no response to the call for public comment. 
 
 * * * * * * * * * * * 
 
 ADJOURNMENT 
 
11:47 a.m. There being no further business to come before the Board, on motion by 
Commissioner Jung, seconded by Commissioner Weber, which motion duly carried, the 
meeting was adjourned.  
 
 
 
 
            
  DAVID E. HUMKE, Chairman 

Truckee Meadows Fire Protection 
District and Sierra Fire Protection 
District 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 
_________________________________ 
NANCY PARENT, Washoe County Clerk 
and Ex-Officio Clerk, Truckee Meadows 
Fire Protection District and Sierra Fire  
Protection District 
 
Minutes Prepared By: 
Stacy Gonzales, Deputy County Clerk  
 
































	BOARD OF FIRE COMMISSIONERS
	TRUCKEE MEADOWS FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
	14-21F AGENDA ITEM 2
	14-22F AGENDA ITEM 3
	14-23F AGENDA ITEM 4
	14-24F AGENDA ITEM 5
	14-25F AGENDA ITEM 6
	14-26F AGENDA ITEM 7
	14-27F AGENDA ITEM 8
	14-28F AGENDA ITEM 9
	14-29F AGENDA ITEM 10
	14-30F AGENDA ITEM 11
	Stacy Gonzales, Deputy County Clerk



